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U.S EPA Docket No.
RCRA-I-2007- 0 0 1 3

I1q
CONSENT AGREEMENT AND
FINAL ORDER PURSUANT TO
40 C.F.R. SECfIONS 2213 AND
22.18

CONSENT AGREEMENT

A. PREU},.1JNARYSTATEMENT

I. This is a civil adminislnltivc enforcement action instituted pursuant to Se<ot;on 3008(a)(l)
of the Resource Conservation and Recovery ACI CReRA"), as amended, 42 U.S.C.
§ 6928(a)(I), and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the Administrative
Assessment of Civil Penalties, Issuance of Compliance or Corrective Action Orders. and
the Revocation, Termination or Suspension of Permits. 40 Code of Federal Regulations
("C.F.R.") Part 22, as revised hy 64 Fed. Reg. 141 (July 23, 1999), Complainant is the
United Stales Environmental Protection Agency, Region 9 ("EPA"). Respondent is
Barbosa Cabinets Inc. ("Barbosa" or "Respondent").

2. Respondent owns and operates a facility located at 2020 E, Grant line Rolld, in Tracy,
California, 95304 (the "Facility"). The Facility's EPA Identification Number is
CAROOOI64137. Respondent manufactures kitchen cabinets and counter tops.

3. This Consent Agreement and Final Order pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Sections 22.13 and 22.18
("CNFO"), simultaneously commences and concludes this proceeding, wherein EPA
alleges that Respondent failed to: (I) obtain a pennit or gr<tnt of interim status for storage
of hazardous waste, a violation of California Health and Safety Code ("H&SC") Section
25200 and 22 California Code of Regulations ("eC.R.") § 66270.l(c) [su also 40 C.F.R.
§ 270.I(c»); (2) close containers of hazardous waste, a violation of 22 eeR,
§ 66265.173 [set' also 40 C.F.R. § 265, 173]; (3) meet training program requirements, a
violation of 22 C.C.R. §§ 66265.16(c) and 66265.16(d)(l) [sec also 40 C.F.R. §
265, 16(c)]; (4) maintain a complete contingency plan, a violation of 22 eC.R.



§ 66265.52 [u~ abo 40C.F.R. § 265.52J and 22 C.C.R. § 66265.37; (5) make a
hazardous waste determination. a violation of n C.C.R. § 66262.11 (see also 40 C.F,R.
§ 262.11) and (6) file a Biennial Repon as required by 22 C.C.R. § 66262.41 (b) [see also
40 C.F.R. § 262.41(a)j. These arc all in violation of Section 3001 t! Kg. of RCRA, 42
U.s,c. § 6921 et ~., and state regulations adopted pursuant tllereto.'

B. JURISDICTION

4. On August I, 1992, the State of California received authorization to administer the
hazardous waste management program in lieu of the federal program pursuant to § 3006
of RCRA, 42 U.S ,C. § 6926, and 40 C.F.R. Part 271. The authoriud program is
established pursuant to the Hazardous Waste Control Law, Chapter 6.5 of Division 20 of
the California Health and Safety Code, and the regulations promulgated thereunder at
Title 22, Division 4.5 of the California Code of Regulations, 22 CC.R. §§ 66001 et seq,
The Slate of California has been authorized for all the regulations referenced in this
CAlFO,

5. Respondent is a "pcrson" as defined in 22 C.CR. § 66260.10 [set' also 40 C.F.R.
§ 260.10].

6. Respondent is the "operator" of a facility as defined in 22 C.C.R. § 66260.10 ]set' abo 40
C.F.R. § 260.10].

7. Respondent's hazardous waste manifests indicate it is a large quantity "generator" of
hazardous waste as defined in 22 C.C.R. § 66260.10 [40 C.F.R. § 260.10].

8. Respondent is or has been engaged in "storage" of hazardous waste as defined in 22
C.CR. § 66260.10 [see also 40 CF.R. § 260.IOJ.

, All citations to the "CCR." refer to Division 4.5 of Title 22 of the current California
Code of Regulations, EPA is enforcing California hazardous waste management program
requirements as approved and authorized by the United States on August I, 1992 (ue 57 FR
32726, July 23,1992) and September 26, 2001 (66 FR 49118, September 26, 2001).
Corresponding Federal citatIons are provided In brackets.
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9. Respondent generates and accumulates, or has generated and accumulated, materials that
are 'wastes' as defined in 22 C.C.R. §§ 66260.10 and 66261.2 [see alsa 40 C.F.R.
§§ 260.10 and 261.2J.

10. At the Facility. Respondent generates and accumulates, or has generated and
accumulated. 'h;aaroous waste" as defined in California Health & Safety Code § 25117,
and 22 C.C.R. §§ 66260.10 and 66261.3 [see a/sa RCRA § 1004(5), and 40 C.F.R.
§§ 260.10 and 26l.3}. 1llese hazardous wastes include, but an: not limited to, acetone
(RCRA waste codes IXXlI and RI03) and paint waste containing toluene (RCRA waste
code RlO5).

II. On May 26. 2006, EPA conducted a RCRA Compliance Evaluation Inspection ("CEI') at
the Facility. Based upon the findings EPA made during the inspection, and additional
information obtained subsequent to the inspection, EPA detennined that Respondent had
violated California Health & Safety Code § 25100 et seq. and the regulations adopted
pursuant thereto. as approved and authorized by the United States.

12. Section 3006 of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6926 provides, inter alia, that authorized state
hazardous waste programs are canied out under Subtitle C of RCRA. Therefore, a
violation of any requirement of law under an authorized state hazardous waste program is
a violation of a requirement of Subtitle C of RCRA.

13, A violation of California's authorized hazardous waste program. found at H&SC § 25100
et seq., constitutes a violation of Subtitle C of RCRA and, therefore, a person who
violates California's authorized hazardous waste progrnm is subject to the powers vested
in the EPA Administrator by Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928.

14. Section 3008 of RCRA, 42 U.s-C. § 6928, authoriz.cs the EPA Administrator to issue or­
ders requiring compliance immediately or within a specified time for violation of any
requirement of Subtitle C of RCRA, Section 3001 of RCRA et seq.. 42 V,S.c. § 6921 et
seq.

15. The Administr.uor has delegated the authority under Section 3008 of RCRA to the EPA
Regional Administrntor for Region 9. who has redelegated this authority to the Director
of the Waste Management DlVisiOtl.
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C. ALLEGED VIOLATIONS

COUNT 1
Failure to Label Containers of Hazardous Waste

16. Paragraphs 1 through 15 above are incorporated herein by this reference as if they were
set forth here in their entirety.

17. 22 C.C.R, § 66270.1(c) requires that each person owning or operating a facility where
hazardous waste is transfel"ll:d, treated, stored, or disposed must have a pennit. At the
time of the inspection, Respondent did nO! have a pennit or grant of interim status to store
haurdous waste under 22 C.C.R. § 66270, l(c) Ist't" also 40 C.F.R. § 270.l(c)l.

18. 22 C.C.R. § 66262,34(a) provides that a generator may accumulate hazardous waste on­
site for 90 days or less without a pennit or grant of interim status provided the generator
meets certain conditions. 22 C.C.R. § 66262.34(f) requires that generators label
containers with the words "hazardous waste" and with the dale accumulation of the waste
begins. and the label must be visible for inspection [st't" also 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)].
Generators who fail to label containers of hazardous waste accordingly fail to meet the
requirements of 22 C.C.R. § 66262.34, and are subject to the pennitting requirements of
22 C.C.R. § 66270.1 [set' also 40 C.F.R. § 270.1].

19. On May 26, 2006. the EPA Inspector obscf"ed two 55-gallon drums of RCRA R)()5
waste thai were not clearly marked with accumulation start dates or labelled with the
required infonnatlon.

20. Respondent's failure to meet the requirement.s set forth or referenced by 22 e.c.R.
§ 66262.34 subject it to the pennit requirement.s of 22 C.C.R. § 66270.1 [st't" also 40
C.F.R. §§ 262.34 and 270.1]. Therefore. EPA alleges that Respondent stored hazardous
waste without a permit. a violation of 22 C.C.R, § 66270.1(c) [see also 40 C.F.R.
§ 270.1(c)].

COUNIII
Failure to Close Containers of Hazardous Waste

21. Paragraphs I through 20 above are incorporated herein by this reference as if they were
set forth here in their entirety.

22. 22 C.eR. § 66262.34(a) provides that a generator may accumulate hazardous waste on­
site for 90 days or less without a pennit or grant of interim status provided the generator
meet.s certain requirements. includ.ng 22 C.C.R. § 66265.173(a). which requires that

,



generators keep containc:r:s holdini haxardous waste closed during transfer and storage.
except when it is neces&Uyto add or remove waste (see DUD 40 C.F.R. § 265.113(a)].

23. On May 26, 2006 !be EPA Inspector obsc:rved ODe 55-gallon drum ofvolatile hazardous
waste in !be hazmIous wllSle SIOnge area Ihal: had an open bwlg with a funnel in it.

24. 1lleJefore, EPA alleges dw Respotldmt has \iolated n C.C.R. § 66265.173 [~DUO40
C.F.R. § 265.1731.

COUNT III
Failure to Meec Hazardous WlISIe Training Requiranmts

25. Paragraphs I through 24 above are inrotpo,ated herein by this refm:nc:e as if they wett

set forth hert in their entirety.

26. 22 C.C.R. § 66262.34(a) provides that a generator may accumulate hazardous waste 011­

site for 90 days or less without a permit or grant of interim status provided the generator
meets certain requirements, including 22 C.C.R. § 66265.I6(a), which requires that
facility penonnel successfully complete a program ofclassroom instnJetion or on-the-job
tTaining that teaches them to perfonn their duties in a way that ensures the facility's
compliance with the general facility standards set forth in the regulations. 22 C.C.R. §
66265.16(c) requires that facility penonnel must take part in an annual review of initial
training required by 22 C.C.R. § 66265.I6(a) [see also 40 C.F.R. §§ 265.16(a) and
265.I6(c)]. 22 C.C.R. § 66265.l6(d) requires owners or operators to maintain records
that document that the tTaining or job experience required have been given to and
completed by facility personnel.

27. On May 26. 2006. the EPA Inspector found thai. reoords documenting training wert not
available.

28. 1lleJefore, EPA alleges that Respondent has violated 22 C.C.R. § 66265.16 [see also 40
C.F.R. § 265.16].

COWfrv
Failure to Maintain a Complete Contingency PllUl

29. Paragraphs 1 through 28 abo\"e are iIlCOllJORlal herein by this rtfm:nc:e as iflhcy wert
set forth bae in !heir entirety.

30. 22 C.C.R. § 66262.34(a) provides thai. 8t:nenlltor may accumulate buardous waste 011­

site for 90 days or less withoul • pennil or grant of interim status provjdal the generator
meets certain requirements, including the contingency plan and emergency procedures at
22 C.C.R. §§ 66265.51 and 66265.52. 22 C.C.R. § 66265.51 requil'CS that each owner or
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operator shall have a contingency plan for the facility designed to minimize hazards to
human health or the environment from fires, explosions or any unplanned sudden or non­
sudden release of hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents to air, soil, or surfoce
water. 22 e.e.R. § 66265.52 details the required content of the contingency plan. 22
CCR. § 66265.52(e) states that the plan must include a list of all emergency equipment
at the facility. and it must include the location of each item on the list.

31. During the eEl, EPA Inspectors found that the contingency plan at the Facility was out of
date and lacked some of the infonnation required by the regulations.

32. Therefore. EPA alleges that Respondent has violated 22 e.e.R. § 66265.52 [su also 40
e.F.R. § 265.52J.

COUNT Y
Failure To Conduct A Hazardous Waste Determination

33. Paragraphs I through 32 above are incorporated tlerein by this refelt'nce as if they welt'
set fanh here in their entirety.

34. Pursuant to 22 CC.R. § 66262.11 [see also 40 CF.R. § 262.11]. a person who generates a
solid waste. as defined in 22 e.CR. 66261.2 [see also 40 CER. § 261.2J. must
detennine if that waste is a hazardous waste.

35. Respondent generates rags contaminated WIth acetone and toluene. At the time of the
CEI, Respondent had not evaluated the rags to detennine if they were haz.ardous waste.

36. After the inspection. Respondent analyzed the waste and found that It was RCRA
hazardous waste [RCRA waste codes DOOL F003. and F005].

31. Therefore. EPA alleges that Respondent has violated 22 CCR. § 66262.11 Isu also 40
C.F.R. § 262.11 J.

COUNTYI
Failure to File a Biennial Report

3g. Paragraphs I through 31 above are incorporated herein by this refelt'nee as if they were
set forth here in their entirety.

22 CCR. § 66162.4I(b) (see also 40 CF.R. § 262.4I(a)] requires that generaton of
I.()(XI kilograms or more of RCRA huardous waste in any single month must file a
Biennial Repon describing hazardous waste generated," each odd·numbered year. The
repons are due by March I of each even-numbered year for waste generated the previous
year.
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40. On May 26. 2006, EPA Inspectors noted that Respondent had nOi filed a Biennial Repon
for 2005.

41. Therefore, EPA alleges that Respondent has violated 22 CCR. § 66262.41(b) [su also
40CFR. § 262AI{a)].

D. CIVIL PENALTY

42. Section 3OO8(g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(g), as adjusted by the Debt Collection
Improvement Act of 1996. see 61 Fed. Reg. 69360 (Dec. 31, 1996), and the Civil
Monetary Penalty InFlation Adjustment Rule, see 69 Fed. Reg. 7121 (Feb. 13,2004),
authorizes a civil penalty of up to TWENTY·SEVEN THOUSAND, FIVE HUNDRED
DOU.ARS ($27500) per day for violations of SUbtitle C of RCRA, 42 U.S.C § 6921 el

seq., occurring between January 31, 1997 and March IS, 2004. The Civil Monetary
Penalty InFlation Adjustment Rule issued in February 2004 authorizes a civil penalty of
up toHURTY·TWO THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($32500) for
violations that oc<:ur after March 15,2004. 69 Fed. Reg. 7121 (Feb. 13, 2004). Based
upon the facts alleged herein and upon those factors which EPA mU51 consider pursuant
to Section 3OO8(a)(3) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C § 6928(a)(3), and the RCRA Civil Penalty
Policy. including the seriousness of the violations, any good faith dfoMs by Respondent
to comply with applicable requirements. and any economic benefit accruing to
Respondent, as well as such other mallers as justice may require, EPA proposes that
Respondent be assessed THIRTY·TWO THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED DOLLARS
($32,200,00) as the ciVIl penalty for the violations alleged herein. The proposed penalties
were calculated in accordance with the "June 2003 RCRA Civil Penalty Policy." Under
the penalty policy, EPA uses a penalty assessment matrix to determine a gravity-based
penalty. That penalty amount is then adjusted to take into account multi-day violations,
for case-specific circumstances, and (or the economic benefit gained from non­
compliance, where appropriale.

E. ADMISSIONS AND WMYERS OF RIGHTS

43. For the purposes of this proceeding, Respondent admits to the jurisdictional allegations
set fonh in Section B of this CA/FO. Respondent consents to and agrees nOiIO contest
EPA's jurisdiction and authority to enter into and issue this CNFO and to enforce its
terms. Funher, Respondent will not contest EPA's jurisdiction and authonty to compel
compliance with this CA/FO in any enforcement proceedings, either administ11ltive or
judiCIal, or 10 impose sanctions for violations of this CNFO.

44. Respondent neither admits nor denies any allegations of (act or law set forth in Secllon C
of this CAIFO. Respondent hereby waives any rights Respondent may have to contest the
allegations set forth In Ihis CA/FO, waives any nghts Respondent may have to a hearing
on any issue relating to the factual allegations or legal conclusions set forth in this

7



CNFO, including without limitation a hearing pursuant to Section 3008(b) of RCRA, 42
U.S.c. § 6928(b), and hereby consents to the issuance of this CNFO without
adjudication. In addition, Respondent hereby waives any rights Respondent may have to
appeal the Final Order anached to this Consent Agreement and made pan of this CAIFO.

F. PARTIES BOUND

45. This CNFO shall apply to and be binding upon Respondent and its agents, successors
and assigns, until such time as the civil penalty required under Sections D and G has been
paid in accordance with Section G, any delays in performance anW'or stipulated penalties
have been resolved. At such time as those mauers are concluded, this CAIFO shall
terminate and constitute full senlement of the violations alleged herein.

46. No change in ownership Of cO'l'Orate, pannership or legal status relating to the Facility
will in any way alter Respondent's obligations and responsibilities under this CAIFO.

47. The undersigned representative of Respondent hereby cenifies that he or she is fully
authorized by Respondem to enter into this CAlFO, to eJtecute and to legally bind
Respondent to il.

G. PAYI\.1ENT OF C1VTL PENALTY

48. Respondent consents to the assessment of and agrees to pay a civil penalty of THIRTY­
TWO THOUSAI\'D TWO HUI\'DRED OOl.l.ARS ($32,200.00) in full senlement of the
federal civil penalty claims set fonh in this CAIFO.

49. Respondent shall submit payment of the THIRTY-TWO THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED
DOl.l.ARS ($32,200.00) within thirty (30) calendar days of the Effective Date of this
CAIFO. The Effective Date of this CAIFO is the date the Final Order, signed by the
Regional Judicial Officer, is filed with the Regional Hearing Clert. All payments Shall
indicate the name of the Facility, EPA identification number of the Facility, the
Respondent's name and address, and the EPA docket number of this action. Payment
shall be made by certified or cashier's check payable to "Treasurer of the United States"
and sent to:

Mellon Bank
U.s. Environmental Protection Ageocy - Region 9
P.O. BOlt 371099M
Pinsburgh.PA 15251.

Atthe time payment is made, a copy of the check shall be sent to:

Danielle CalT
RegIonal Hearing Clerk (Re-1)
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U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 9
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco, CA 94105

ood

Charles Swanson (WST-3)
Waste Management Division
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency - Region 9
75 Hawthorne Street
San Francisco. CA 94105.

SO. In accordance with the Debt Collection Act of 1982 and U.S. Treasury direetive (TFRM
6-8000), each payment must be reeeived by the due date set fonh in this CNFO to avoid
additional charges. If payment is not received by lhe due date, interest will accrue from
lhe Effective Date of this CAIFO at the current rate published by the United States
Treasury as described at 40 C.F.R. § 13.11. A lale penally charge of $15.00 will be
imposed a((er thiny (30) calendar days with an additional $15.00 charge for each
subsequent 3O-day period. A 6% per annum penalty will funher apply on any principal
amount nO! paid within ninety (90) calendar days of its due date. Respoodent funh<:r will
be liable for stipulated penalties as set fonh below for any payment not received by its
due date.

H. DELAY IN PERFORMANCE/STIPULATED PENALTIES

51, In the evenl Respondem fails to meet any requiremem set fonh in this CAlFO,
Respondent shall pay stipulated penalties as set fonh below:

For failure to submit a payment to EPA by the time required in this CAlFO: ONE
THOUSAND DOLURS ($1,000) per day for finitto fifteenlh day of delay. ONE
THOUSAND FIVE HUNDRED DOilARS ($1.500) per day for sixteenth to thirtieth
day of delay, and TWO THOUSAND AVE HUNDRED DOLLARS ($2,500) per day for
each day of delay thereafter.

52. All penalties owed to EPA lmder this Section shall be due within lhiny (30) days of
receipt of a notification of noncompliance. Such notification shall describe the
noncompliance and shall indicate the amount of penalties due. Interest at the current "'Ie
published by the United States Treasury, as described at 40 C.F.R. §13.11, shall begin to
accrue on the unpaid balance at the end of the thiny-day period.

53. All penalties shall be made payable by certified or cashier's check 10 "Treasurer of the
United States" and shall be remitted as described in Paragraph 49.
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54. The payment of stipulated penalties shall nOi alter in any way Respondent's obligation to
complete the performance requi~d he~under,

55. The stipulated penalties set forth in this Section do not preclude EPA from pursuing any
other ~medies or sarn:tions which may be available to EPA by reason of Respondent's
failure to comply with any of the requirements of this CAIFO.

I. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

56. EPA Ilereby reserves all of its statutory and regulatory powers, authorities, rights and
remedies, both legal and equitable, including the right to require that Respondent perform
tasks in addition 10 those: required by this CAIFO. EPA further reserves all of its statutory
and regulatory powers, authorities, rights and n:medies, both legal and equitable. which
may pertain to Respondent's failun: to comply with any of the requirements of this
CAlFO, including without limitation, the assessment of penalties under Section 3008(c)
of RCRA, 42 U.S.c. § 6928(c), This CAIFO shall not be construed as a covenant not to
sue, ~Iease, waiver or limitation of any rights, remedies, powers or authorities, civil or
criminal. which EPA has under RCRA. tile Comprellensive Environmental Response.
Compensation and Liability Act of 1980, as amended ("CERCLA"), or any other
statutory, re8ulatory or common law enforcement authority of the United States.

57. Compliance by Respondent with the terms of this CAIFO shall not n:lieve Respondent of
its obligations to comply with RCRA or any other applicable local, State or federal laws
and n:gulations.

58. The entry of this CAIFO and Respondent's consent to comply shall not limit or otherwise
preclude EPA from taking additional enforcement actions should EPA determine that
such actions an: warranted except as they relate to Respondent's liability for federal civil
penalties for the specific alleged violations and facts as se:t forth in Section C of this
CNFO.

59. This CNFO is nOi intended to be nor shall it Ix construed as a penni!. This CAIFO does
not relieve Respondent of any obligation to obtain and comply with any local, State or
federal pennits.

J. OTHER CLAIMS

,

60 Nothing in th's CNFO shall constitute or be construed as a n:lease from any other claim,
cause: of action or demand in law or equity by or against any person. finn, partnership.
entity or corporation for any liability it may have arising out of or n:lattng in any way to
the generation, stor-~ge, treatment, handling, transpo'1at,on, ~Iease:, or disposal of any
hazardous constituents, hazardous substances. hazardous wastes, pollutants, or
contaminants found at, taken to, or taken from the Facility.
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J(. MI5CEJ I N''EQUS

51. nus CN'fO O1&y be NnmlIed ur II&.Idilled only by writtQI .,,_ euculCG by bot!l

EPA ..-IllQpondent.

61. n. badiup illlhiJ CAJR)~ for COIlverocnce of ,c(deuce only and shtll GDl affect
iDU:~OlI ol thil CAIFO.

63. OM I!tfeeti,.. nat.: <'If ttl.. CAIFO lllhc: dale 1M FirJ&! QnIcr.lianed bytbehpOllai
}~cia1Offic..... Is filed by lhe RcJiooal Hearint Oak.

Jctr Duct
W_ llItqetneIll DiviliOIl
U.S. Bnvi"",.....w Prac«tJ.0Il Af!rncy,lIqiDll'

IT IS SO AOREfb.

-'kkOO7
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FINAL ORDER

IT [S HEREBY ORDERED that this Consent Agreement and Final Order pursuant to 40 C.F.R.
Seetions 22.13 and 22.18 (U,S. EPA Docket No. RCRAt9-2007- 0 0 1 3be entered and that
Barbosa Cabinets [nco pay a civil penallY of THIRTY·TWO THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED
OO~RS ($32,200.00) due within thiny (30) days from the Effeetive Date or this Consent
Agreement and Final Order. Payment must be made pursuant 10 Section G of the Consent
Agreement.

This Final Order shall be effeelive upon filing by the Regional Hearing Clerk.

1;'4'------
Date Ste n J wgiel

Regio al Judicial Officer
United States Environmental Proteelion Agency.
Region 9



CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that on the date below, the original copy of the fOTegning Cumplllint,
Consent Agreement and Final Order, was filed with the Regional Hearing Clerk, Region lX, and
that copies were sent by certified mail, return receipt requested, 10:

Barbosa Cabinets, Inc.
2020e. Gran! Line Road

Tracy, CA 95304

u.s Postal ServIce M

CERTIFIED MAIL M RECEIPT
/Dom.uhC AWl Only /ole '-~nc. ~__)

'i-3-~ 't
Date Danielle Can

Regional Hearing Clerk
Office of Regional CowtSel, Region IX
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